
 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting 
 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

Date and Time Thursday, 7th December, 2023 at 9.30 am 
  
Place Learning Room, The Arc, Jewry Street, Winchesterer 
  
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
Carolyn Williamson FCPFA 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website and 
available for repeat viewing, it may also be recorded and filmed by the press and 
public. Filming or recording is only permitted in the meeting room whilst the meeting is 
taking place so must stop when the meeting is either adjourned or closed.  Filming is 
not permitted elsewhere in the building at any time. Please see the Filming Protocol 
available on the County Council’s website. 

 
AGENDA 

  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence received. 

  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 

any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest 
and, having regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with 
Paragraph 1.6 of the Code.  Furthermore all Members with a Personal 
Interest in a matter being considered at the meeting should consider, 
having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such interest 
should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the 
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance 
with the Code. 
  
   

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting – 5 October 2023. 

  

Public Document Pack



4. DEPUTATIONS   
 
 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12. 

  
5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 
 To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make. 

  
6. INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP UPDATE  (Pages 7 - 18) 
 
 To receive a report from Frimley and Hampshire and Isle of Wight ICBs 

progress made on serving Hampshire and the Isle of Wight 
  

7. HEALTHY WEIGHT  (Pages 19 - 26) 
 
 To receive the report from the Director of Public Health on the Healthy 

Weight Strategy for Hampshire 
  

8. HEALTH PROTECTION REPORT 2023  (Pages 27 - 44) 
 
 To receive the Director of Public Health’s Health Protection Annual 

Report 
  

9. FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 45 - 50) 
 
 To receive the Forward Plan for the Board’s meetings.  

 
 
ABOUT THIS AGENDA: 
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages. 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance. 
 
 
County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses. 

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


 

1 
 

AT A MEETING of the Health and Wellbeing Board of HAMPSHIRE COUNTY 
COUNCIL  

held at The Arc, Jewry Street, Winchester  
on Thursday, 5th October 2023 

 
Chairman: 

  Councillor Jan Warwick 
 

Vice-Chairman 
* Dr Matt Nisbet (in the Chair) 

 
 

  Councillor Edward Heron 
* Councillor Liz Fairhurst 
 

  Councillor Steve Forster 
 

 
*Present 

Co-opted members 
Graham Allen, Simon Bryant, Ros Hartley, Martha Earley, Cllr Anne Crampton, 
Councillor Jackie Porter, Julie Amies, Jason Avery, Siobhain McCurrach, Suzanne 
Smith, Laura Taylor and Terry Norton 
 
  
86.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies were received from: Cllr Jan Warwick, Cllr Edward Heron, Stuart 
Ashley, Ron Shields, Alex Whitfield, Donna Jones, Clare Jenkins, Gill Kneller.  
  

87.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Members were mindful that where they believed they had a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest in any matter considered at the meeting they must declare 
that interest at the time of the relevant debate and, having regard to the 
circumstances described in Part 3, Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members' Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter was discussed, 
save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the 
Code. Furthermore Members were mindful that where they believed they had a 
Personal interest in a matter being considered at the meeting they considered 
whether such interest should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, 
Paragraph 5 of the Code, considered whether it was appropriate to leave the 
meeting whilst the matter was discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with the Code.  
   

88.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

The minutes of the last meeting held on 15 June 2023 were reviewed and 
agreed. 
 
 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

89.   DEPUTATIONS  
 

No Deputations were received.  
  

90.   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

The Chairman Dr Matt Nisbet welcomed all present to the meeting, which was to 
be followed by the Hampshire Place Assembly.   
  
The Chairman informed the Board that the Hampshire Place Board continued to 
focus on discharge provision and prevention and mental health. A summary 
regarding the Place Board would be circulated to Members in the coming weeks.  
 
Following the Hampshire Place Assembly in June, which focused upon social 
isolation, loneliness, and social connection, Members received a short update on 
actions following the Place Assembly. 
  
The Chairman encouraged everyone eligible this year to come forward for their 
Covid and flu vaccine. 
  

91.   CLIMATE CHANGE AND HEALTH  
 

The Board received a report and presentation setting out the impact of climate 
change on the population and identified the synergies between the public 
health’s and action on climate change. The Chairman welcomed Sian Davies, 
Penny Brown, Lyndsay Jones and Chitra Nadarajah.  
  
The speakers represented the principal tiers of local government and the NHS 
and highlighted the plans and actions being undertaken across the county, 
based on a Mitigate, Adapt and Impact approach. An overview of the 
consequences of global warming was given and the equity implications were 
highlighted, including seldom heard and young people.  
  
There was also discussion regarding climate change, in particular about actions 
to address climate change consequences within the estate, it was noted that The 
County Council is working with the University of Southampton studying 
residential care homes including means to adapt – the work is due to complete in 
February 2024.  
  
RESOLVED 
  
That the Health and Wellbeing Board:  
 
1.        Recognise the implications of climate change on health and the 
opportunities for improving health whilst reducing carbon emissions. 
2.        To note the highlighted constituent organisations priorities and actions on 
climate change and for all organisations to consider their role in climate change 
mitigation and adaptation. 
3.        Ensure climate change adaptation and mitigation measures consider 
impacts on health inequalities. 

Page 4



 

3 
 

4.        That Board members seek opportunities to collaborate on measures to 
mitigate and adapt to climate change, with a focus on health inequalities. 
   

92.   PHYSICAL ACTIVITY STRATEGY UPDATE  
 

The Board received a report and presentation from Energise Me and the 
Chairman welcomed CEO Julie Amies to present the report.  
  
The Board were reminded that the ‘We Can Be Active’ system strategy had been 
adopted in October 2021, that it had been based on a public engagement and 
was built around five broad goals.  A new government strategy, Get Active, had 
been launched in September 2023.   
  
Members heard the updates on progress made based on the goals within the 
strategy and recognised the activity that is happening across Hampshire to 
promote, enable, offer choice and ensure accessibility with regards to physical 
activity. 
  
There was also discussion surrounding supporting the #BeeWell survey which is 
aimed at secondary school aged children to gather data about their views on 
physical activity which will support future organisational learning. Suzanne Smith 
agreed to take forward the suggestion around reaching out to school governors 
for support for engaging with physical activities.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the Health and Wellbeing Board support, encourage and promote the aims 
of the ‘We Can Be Active Strategy’ including tackling inequalities with regards to 
inactivity and recognise the co-benefits of physical activity for social isolation, 
mental wellbeing, and climate change promoting activity in all aspect of 
organisation’s remit. This encompassed the specific recommendations in the 
report. 
  

93.   PUBLIC HEALTH STRATEGY UPDATE  
 

The Board received a presentation on the Public Health Strategy from Simon 
Bryant, Director of Public Health.  Jo Jefferies, Associate Director of Public 
Health introduced the Public Health Strategy 2023-26, which was set out in full.   
   
The following principal points were highlighted: 
  
·         The strategy had been based on the Hampshire Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment and engagement with key system stakeholders.  
·         HCC had a statutory duty to improve health and well-being and reduce 

inequalities.  
·         The ambitions were to increase the number of years residents could 

expect to live in good health and reduce the gap in healthy life years between 
the most and least healthy.  
·         It addressed the building blocks of health and sought to shape a place 

where it is easier for people to be healthy – health people, healthy people, 
healthy lives.  

Page 5



 

4 
 

·         The role of “anchor” organisations supporting the strategy were noted 
alongside the new strategies alignment with system partners strategies. 

 
 RESOLVED  
  
1.    The Health & Well-Being Board review and support the strategies launch  
2.    Support to embed the strategy and engage with the action plans linked to 

the strategic themes and ambitions 
   

94.   HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023  
 

The Board received the Health and Wellbeing board annual report for 2022/23 
from the Director of Public Health, it was noted the annual report would be 
presented to the Hampshire Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel. 
  
The report highlighted the work of the Board and its members to support the 
Health and Wellbeing Board’s Strategy in 2022-23 and enable strategic change 
to improve health outcomes for Hampshire’s population. Key priorities were 
noted which included the Board supporting the co-production of a new Health 
and Wellbeing Board Strategy in 2024. 
  
RESOLVED  
  

1.  Receives the report.  
2.  That Board members share the report and support future development 

and engage with the Boards work in the coming year including the new 
strategy. 
   

95.   FORWARD PLAN  
 

The Board received the Forward Plan of business  
  
RESOLVED 
  
To note the Forward Plan and any suggestions for future business  
  
  
 
 
 
 
  
 Chairman,  

 

Page 6



 
 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 

Committee: Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date: 7th December 2023 

Title: Update on the Integrated Care Partnerships serving Hampshire and 
the Isle of Wight 

Report From: Ros Hartley, Director of Partnerships, Hampshire & Isle of Wight ICB 
Sam Burrows, Chief Transformation & Digital Officer, Frimley ICB 

Contact name: Ros Hartley & Sam Burrows  

Email: 
ros.hartley1@nhs.net 
sam.burrows3@nhs.net 

  

 

Purpose of this Report 
 

1. This report provides an update on the progress made by the integrated care 
systems serving Hampshire and the Isle of Wight, which are the Frimley and 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care Systems.   
 

2. The report outlines the agreed strategic priorities and provides a summary of 
the progress made in the delivery of the strategies. 

 

3. The report sets out the ambitions and next steps for the integrated care 
systems.    

 
Recommendation(s) 
  
That the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board: 

4. Receive the report and note the progress made and delivering the strategic 
priorities.  

5. Consider its role in helping to deliver the strategic priorities across both 
integrated care systems. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6

mailto:ros.hartley1@nhs.net


 
 

 

Executive Summary  

6. Hampshire County Council is part of both the Hampshire and Isle of Wight and 
Frimley Integrated Care Systems, which were established in July 2022 as part 
of the new Health and Social Care Act 2022. Both systems are composed of 
two new statutory health and care components, an integrated care board and 
an integrated care partnership.  

7. The integrated care partnerships bring together a broad range of partners 
from across different sectors and are responsible for setting the strategy for 
health and care to meet local healthcare, social care and public health needs. 

8. The integrated care strategies describe the priorities across each system. 
These priorities build on the work of the Local Health and Wellbeing Boards 
and set priorities where collaboration and joint working would have a positive 
impact. 

9. This report outlines the progress made following the report to the Hampshire 
Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2023.   

Key priorities for each Strategy 

Strategic Ambitions  

10. Each partnership has set some key strategic ambitions which aim to promote 
the health and wellbeing of the population of Hampshire and the Isle of Wight. 
Though the priorities are different, to reflect the local needs, there are common 
threads concerning a focus on prevention, tackling health inequalities, 
improving health outcomes and service delivery.  

11. The Frimley Health and Care Integrated Care System has two flagship 
ambitions, which are: to reduce health inequalities and to increase healthy life 
expectancy.  In addition, it has six strategic ambitions which are: 
• Starting well 
• Living well 
• People, places and communities 
• Our people 
• Leadership and cultures 
• Outstanding use of resources 

Page 8



 
 

12. The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care Partnership has set out its 
aims which are to:  
• Reduce the demand for health and care services.  
• Enable us to further improve the quality of service we provide. 
• Relieve pressure on the people who work in our organisations.  
• Enable us to live within our financial means. 

13. Five priority areas emerged from initial assessment of data and understanding 
insights from people, communities, and colleagues: 
• Children and Young people 
• Mental Wellbeing 
• Good health and proactive care 
• Our People (Workforce) 
• Digital solutions, data, and insight 

 
Achievements and Next Steps 

14. Both integrated care partnerships have worked with a range of stakeholders 
to develop their priorities and to benefit from collaboration and joint working. 
The strategies also draw upon the Hampshire Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) to identify the population’s health and wellbeing needs 
and health inequalities. 

15. The Frimley Integrated Care System has established an assembly, consisting 
of a range of partner organisations from statutory and the voluntary, community 
and social enterprise sectors. A refreshed strategy has been published and a 
local forward plan will be published setting out how the ambitions of the strategy 
will be achieved. In addition, there has been an emphasis on developing 
system leadership and the culture of the partnership. As next steps, the Frimley 
Integrated Care Partnership will be developing the design and function of the 
Partnership. In addition, there will be a focus on ensuring the progress and 
impact of the strategy is measured and reported.  There will also work to 
continue to strengthen and embed partnership working. 

16. The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care System has established a 
system of assemblies, involving a wide range of stakeholders, the last of which 
was held in September around the theme of mental wellbeing, and a joint 
committee of key stakeholders. Programme boards and leads have been 
identified for the strategic priorities and work has mobilised. The Hampshire 
and Isle of Wight VCSE Health and Care Alliance (HIVCA) is also being 
developed to strengthen the voice of the voluntary sector.  As next steps, the 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care Partnership will be focussing on 

Page 9



 
 

the delivery of the programmes and having effective, agreed outcomes 
measures. There will also be a focus on the opportunities for shared 
communications. An assembly with the theme of social connectedness will be 
held in February 2024.       

17. The Integrated Care Partnerships will have regard for and build on the work of 
the health and wellbeing boards to maximise the value of place based 
collaboration and integration and reduce the risk of duplication. They will 
ensure that action at system-wide level adds value to the action at place and 
they are all aligned in understanding what is best for the population. 

 Conclusion 

18. The Frimley and Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care Systems are 
working with a broad range of stakeholders to develop strategic priorities where 
there are benefits in greater partnership working and use of the collective 
resources to improve the health of the population.  

19. The strategies that have been developed with the aim of supporting people to 
live healthy lives, tackling health inequalities, with an emphasis on preventative 
interventions, and to reduce the need for health and care services in the long 
term.   

20. The strategies acknowledge the work happening at a Hampshire place level 
and importance of partnership working with the Hampshire Health and 
Wellbeing Board.  It is recognised that health and wellbeing boards lead action 
at place level to improve people’s lives and remain responsible for promoting 
greater integration and partnership between the NHS, public health, and local 
government. Both Integrated Care Systems seek to work alongside the 
Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board to maximise opportunities for joint 
working to improve the health outcomes of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
population.    

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 

 
Links to the Strategic Plan 

 

Page 10



 
 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

no 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

no 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

yes 

 
Other Significant Links 

 
Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives   
Title Date 
Integrated Care Systems: design framework 
 
Thriving places Guidance on the development of place based 
partnerships as part of statutory integrated care systems 
 
 
Health and social care integration: joining up care for people, 
places and populations 
 
Health & Wellbeing Board Guidance 

June 2021 
 
September 
2021 
 
 
February 2022 
 
 
November 2022 

  
 
 
 

 
 

Page 11



 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 

1. Equality Duty 
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 

sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
 
At this stage, an equalities impact assessment is not relevant because the 
item for discussion is an update for discussion and noting. 

 
 

Page 12



Summary of the two Integrated Care Strategies 
of Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care 
System and Frimley Integrated Care System

Ros Hartley – Director of Partnerships, Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care System
Sam Burrows – Chief Transformation & Digital Officer, Frimley Integrated Care System

7 December 2023

P
age 13



What is an Integrated Care System?

NHS England defines an integrated care system as “partnerships of organisations that come together to plan and deliver joined up 
health and care services, and to improve the lives of people who live and work in their area.” (NHS England » What are integrated care 
systems?).The Health and Care Act 2022 established 42 Integrated Care Systems across England. 

• Each Integrated Care System contains two statutory elements:
• the Integrated Care Partnership, responsible for setting our integrated care strategy; and 
• an Integrated Care Board, responsible for a number of functions around healthcare service delivery including planning, resource 

allocation, quality and transformation. 

• The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care System is made up of four places: Hampshire, Southampton, Portsmouth and Isle of 
Wight, each of which has a Health and Wellbeing Board and a partnership board.

• Frimley Integrated Care System is made up of five places: North East Hampshire and Farnham, the Royal Borough of Windsor and 
Maidenhead, Bracknell, Slough and Surrey Health.

• All system partners with the Integrated Care System have a key role in setting the conditions for the system to thrive and succeed, for the 
benefit of all the people living within the area served by the Integrated Care System. 

Though Hampshire is served by two Integrated Care Systems, the priorities and approaches 
are similar in their aim of benefitting the health and wellbeing of people living in Hampshire.

P
age 14

https://www.england.nhs.uk/integratedcare/what-is-integrated-care/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/integratedcare/what-is-integrated-care/


Strategic Priorities
Frimley Health and Care 
Integrated Care System

Our People 
(workforce)

Digital and Data

Develop integrated workforce planning

Improve how we share information and improve digital skills

Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Integrated Care System

Six strategic ambitions to deliver two 
flagship objectives:
• Reduce health inequalities for our 

population
• Increase healthy life expectancy

P
age 15



Our Approach
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated 
Care System

Frimley Health and Care Partnership

In the Frimley Health and Care Integrated Care 
System we have:

• Co-designed with partners an “assembly” approach to the 
formation and delivery of the Integrated Care Partnership

• Prioritised the effectiveness of our joint work and 
relationships with the three Public Health functions in the 
Frimley geography

• Held focused leadership development time to consider and 
develop the Frimley leadership vision and values

• Committed to the importance of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board construct, of which there are five in the Frimley 
geography, including placing health intelligence (i.e. JSNAs) 
at the heart of our approach

• The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care Partnership has developed a 
vision: “Happier, safer, healthier. Together.”

• The joint committee sets the strategic focus for the Integrated Care System, 
ensuring the Integrated Care System adds value to place, modelling system 
behaviours and developing and a learning and sharing culture and maximising 
the collective use of resources to enable the delivery of the strategy

• The joint committee acts as the steering committee for the Integrated Care 
Partnership and sets the strategic direction for the system

• The assembly is a forum for bringing together all the different partners across 
the system to creatively problem solve some of the challenges of working 
together

• The partnership has also developed a set of ambitions, outcomes and strategic 
actions which fall under each of the priority areas

• An Integrated Care Partnership Steering Group meets monthly to ensure joint 
planning and avoid duplication

P
age 16



What has been achieved?
Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Integrated Care System

• Three assemblies have been held, the last one held 
in September focused on mental wellbeing with over 
100 people attending

• Programme boards have been established and  
strategic leads identified

• Work has already mobilised (e.g. joint work to 
promote the suicide prevention training across 
partners which resulted in a significant uptake of the 
training) 

• The development of the voluntary sector voice 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight VCSE Health and Care 
Alliance (HIVCA ) has progressed with appointments 
made to the leadership committee

Since July 2022 we have:

• Established the Integrated Care Partnership, an 
assembly of c.85 attendees from a broad range of 
statutory and VCSE partners across the Frimley 
geography

• Published our refreshed strategy, Creating Healthier 
Communities which sets out our shared objectives and 
strategic ambitions

• Held focused leadership development time to consider 
and develop the Frimley leadership vision and values

• Created a mandate for the local NHS to publish a Joint 
Forward Plan which makes clear how some of this work 
will be progressed

Frimley Health and Care 
Partnership 

P
age 17



Next Steps
Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Integrated Care System

• The outcomes measures for each priority will be co-
designed and confirmed by the New Year

• The Integrated Care Partnership will collaborate on 
communicating a clear message to Hampshire and 
Isle of Wight residents about keeping well this winter 

• An assembly focussing on the social connectedness 
strategic priority will be held in February 2024

• HIVCA will develop a memorandum of 
understanding which will be submitted to the joint 
committee in the New Year

• The programmes will provide an update on their 
activities and outcomes at the joint committee in 
March 2024

Our next steps include:

• Working on the design and function of the “ICP 2.0” 
– co-developed in partnership with Directors of 
Public Health, broader local authority partners and 
the Integrated Care Board working together

• Ensuring we have clarity on measuring delivery 
progress with our Creating Healthier Communities 
strategy

• Forward planning an exciting programme of 
sessions for 2024 which places our founding motto – 
Learn, Deliberate, Decide – at the core of our 
approach to partnership working

Frimley Health and Care 
Partnership 

P
age 18



 
 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 
Committee: Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date: 7th December 2023 

Title: Healthy Weight Update  

Report From: Director of Public Health  

Contact name: Darren Carmichael 

Email:                   Darren.carmichael@hants.gov.uk 
 

Purpose of this Report 

1. This report seeks to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the Healthy 
Weight Strategy for Hampshire, providing examples of the successes 
achieved by system partners in contributing to the strategy and makes 
recommendations on how to progress with the ambition to mitigate against 
the prevalence of obesity in Hampshire and support Hampshire residents 
who are overweight or obese.  

Recommendation(s)  

That the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board: 

2. Recognise the ongoing impacts on the health of Hampshire residents of 
being overweight or obese.  

3. To note progress made by system partners in delivering core objectives of 
the Healthy Weight Strategy. 

4. Seek opportunities to collaborate on measures to mitigate excess weight 
gain among Hampshire residents and support those residents who are 
living with obesity.    

5. Recognise the opportunities for Districts and Borough Councils to apply 
good practice identified in taking a whole systems approach building and 
linking healthy weight objectives into various policies. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Executive Summary  

6. The prevalence of overweight & obesity in Hampshire is slightly higher than 
the regional prevalence and the same as the national prevalence. This 
highlights the need for ongoing action among partners to tackle this 
important public health problem.  

7. Partners from Local Authorities, Integrated Care Boards, to Childrens 
Partnerships and Public Health continue to work with ambition to mitigate 
weight gain and help those living with obesity to manage their weight. The 
Hampshire healthy weight strategy exists to support this ambition.  

8. This report makes recommendations on how to proceed with the Healthy 
Weight Strategy with the ultimate objective of reducing the prevalence of 
overweight and obesity in Hampshire and reducing it’s impact on 
population health.  

 
Contextual Information 

 
9. It is estimated that the current percentage of adults in England (aged 18+) 

affected by overweight or obesity is 63.8% (2021/22)1. Although there are 
people in all population groups who are above a healthy weight, obesity is 
related to social disadvantage with some population groups are more 
affected than others. For example, the prevalence of excess weight 11% 
higher in the most deprived compared to the least deprived areas2. 
 

10. Being overweight or obesity can lead to chronic and severe medical 
conditions3. The urgency of addressing excess weight in the population 
was highlighted during the COVID-19 pandemic. Living with excess weight 
put people at greater risk of serious illness or death from COVID-19, with 
risk growing as body mass index (BMI) increases.  
 

11. A national policy paper was published in July 2020, announcing a set of 
new policies to empower people to make healthier choices.  This paper 
established that “helping people to achieve and maintain a healthy weight 
is one of the most important things we can do to improve our nation’s 
health”4. 
 

 

1 Office for Health Improvement and Disparities. Public health profiles- obesity. 2023. 
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/obesity   
2 Active Lives Survey data 2017/18, extracted from Public Health England Profiles 
3 https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/qs111/chapter/Introduction 
4 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tackling-obesity-government-strategy/tackling-obesity-empowering-adults-
and-children-to-live-healthier-lives 

Page 20

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/obesity
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/qs111/chapter/Introduction


 
 

12. In Hampshire, the percentage of adults estimate to be living with 
overweight or obesity is 63.2%, which is similar to England at 63.5% and 
slightly higher than the regional average of 62.4%5.   

Hampshire Healthy Weight Strategy  
 
13. The Hampshire Healthy Weight Strategy 2022-2026 supports the 

overarching Public Health Strategy for Hampshire in its ambition to 
increase the number of years Hampshire residents can expect to live in 
good health and reduce the gap in healthy life years between the most and 
least healthy.  
 

14. Through effective partnership working to deliver cross-cutting actions and 
using a whole systems approach, the Hampshire Healthy Weight Strategy 
2022-2026 aims to reduce or level off the prevalence of overweight and 
obesity.  

 
15. While the Hampshire Healthy Weight Strategy 2022-2026 remains a key 

document of reference focussing on overweight and obesity in Hampshire, 
there are obvious synergies with allied strategy and policy documents.  
including the Hampshire Physical Activity Strategy, the draft Local 
Transport Plan (LTP4), and the District and Borough Local Plans. 

 
16. Through our three overarching strategic objectives we will work towards a 

healthier Hampshire:  
a. We will support places and communities to enable residents to achieve a 

healthier weight.  
b. We will work with health, care, education and community settings and 

systems to promote healthier weight across the life course.  
c. We will reduce inequalities in health by focusing on people and 

populations most at risk.  

Action on objective 1: We will support places and communities to enable 
residents to achieve a healthier weight  

17. Partners are working together to ensure that health and wellbeing is  
enhanced with action on active travel, opportunities for physical activity, 
access to green and blue space, food environment and encouraging quality 
food businesses.  

 

5 Office for Health Improvement & Disparities, Local Authority Health Profiles. [Internet] Hampshire. Accessed 12th 
December 2022. Available from: Local Authority Health Profiles - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk) 

Page 21

https://www.hants.gov.uk/publichealthstrategy
https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth/publichealth
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938132701/pat/6/ati/402/are/E10000014/iid/90366/age/1/sex/1/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/3/cid/4/tbm/1


 
 

18. District and Borough Councils have built health into Local Plans so that 
future developments can provide opportunities to develop healthy weight 
urban environments.  
 

19. The draft Local Transport Plan (LTP4) put health and wellbeing at the heart 
of transport policy, including promoting quality places for people to live and 
putting measures in place to enable active travel choices.  

 
20. Partners continue to work together to deliver whole systems approaches 

(WSA) to obesity in Havant and Rushmoor.  Work is underway to identify 
and deliver renewed actions for and with partners.  

 
21. To make progress on healthier food environments, in 2024 a Hampshire-

wide healthier food award will be launched for food premises such as 
caterers, restaurants and take-aways, to apply for (at no cost to the food 
business). 

 
22. Partners continue to work together to support those Hampshire residents 

experiencing food insecurity, working with food banks, food pantries, library 
services and others to improve access, availability, affordability, and quality 
of healthier food options. 

 
Action on objective 2: We will work with health, care, education and 
community settings and systems to promote healthier weight across the life 
course.  

• Hampshire County Council (Public Health, Childrens Services and 
participating schools) actively promote a whole setting approach to healthy 
weight in educational settings.  

• This includes the provision of lessons in living healthily, provision of a 
nutritious and varied menu at mealtimes with free school meals for some 
eligible children, environments in school settings that promote physical 
activity and opportunities for families to build active travel into their daily 
routine to/from school.  

23. This allows all children to experience and develop positive beliefs and 
behaviours about eating and exercise that last into adulthood. Support 
includes training for all staff, resources, and policy guidance.  
 

24. The Holiday Activity and Food (HAF) programme provides funded holiday 
activities for children who are in receipt of free school meals. HAF schemes 
provide healthy meals, and many of these community-based providers 
carry out the Daily Mile at their provisions, others are specialist sports 
providers offering a range of sporting activities.  

Page 22



 
 

 
 

25. Programmes such as the Golden Mile and the Hampshire School Games 
delivered by Energise Me in partnership with other organisations are key, 
alongside the great work of our teachers leading PE lessons. Funding has 
also been achieved to boost physical activity in our communities 
particularly for those populations who are most inactive. 
 

26. The first 1001 days is recognised as crucial in the best start for children. 
Hampshire County Council has with stakeholders and the community to 
review the support for the first 1001 days of a child’s life.  

 
27. Partners are working together to design and test a family lifestyle support 

programme that sensitively supports factors affecting family members 
weight.  This is to be driven by insights from the very communities partners 
are trying to support.  

 
28. Childrens Services have successfully increased e-learning uptake among 

staff on healthier eating in educational settings.   

Action on objective 3: We will reduce inequalities in health by focusing 
on people and populations most at risk.  

29. The newly commissioned Tier 2 adult weight management service is 
focussed on addressing inequalities with prorities including men, residents 
living in deciles of greater deprivation and those living with comorbidities. 
Face to face, digital and physical activity formats ensure greater 
accessibility to the service. Demand for the service has been high.  

30. Man V Fat is a physical activity and weight management intervention 
tailored to the needs of men. Informal football and weight loss 
achievements equate to points in a league, motivating men to lose weight. 
There are currently leagues in Aldershot, Andover, Basingstoke, Eastleigh, 
Gosport, and Havant, reflecting target area where the prevalence of obesity 
is higher.  

31. Public Health, commercial partners and the community are working 
together to pilot support for women too: working with Horizon Leisure to 
deliver a women-only programme in Havant and with My Health Revolution 
to deliver a women-only programme in Gosport and Rushmoor.  

32. General practices and community pharmacies can also refer eligible 
Hampshire residents to the NHS digital weight management programme. 

Page 23

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/first-1001-days.pdf


 
 

This programme supports Hampshire adults living with obesity who also 
have a diagnosis of diabetes, hypertension or both, to manage their weight 
and improve their health. It is a 12-week online behavioural and lifestyle 
programme that people can access via a smartphone or computer. The 
ICB are reviewing the current uptake of this service to increase referrals 
into the programme. 

33. NHS commissioned Tier 3 and Tier 4 (bariatric) weight management 
interventions continue to support residents with higher needs.  The impact 
of recent NICE guidelines on Semaglutide for weight loss on services is not 
clear at the time of writing. 

34. We recognise inequalities in access to weight management support for 
Hampshire residents living with a Learning Disability (LD). Partners are 
working together to build on the good practice of other Local Authority 
weight management programmes to support this specific community.   

 
35. We recognise that mental health may present a barrier to uptake or affect 

the impact of a standard weight management support offer. Partners are 
working together to identify accessible support with appropriate outcome 
expectations.    

 
Conclusion 

36. Much work has been undertaken by system partners in seeking to mitigate 
the opportunities for weight gain and to help those living with obesity in 
Hampshire. It remains that the work needs to continue, building on the 
learning derived from the many partners that contribute to mitigating 
obesity impact in Hampshire.  

    
 
   
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 24



 
 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 
Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

yes 

 
OR 

 
This proposal does not link to the Strategic Plan but, nevertheless, requires a 
decision because: 
 
 
 
 
Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 
None  

 
 

Page 25



 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 

1. Equality Duty 
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 

sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low. 

 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment  
An Impact assessment has not been undertake for this report as it does not 
propose new undertakings requiring such an assessment and reports on 
strategy progress.  

Page 26



  

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 
Committee: Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date: 07 December 2023 

Title: Health Protection Annual Report 2022 - 2023 

Report From: Simon Bryant, Director of Public Health  

Contact name: Simon Bryant 

Tel:    02380 383326 Email: Simon.bryant@hants.gov.uk 
 

Purpose of this Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to present the Director of Public Health’s Health 
Protection Annual Report, ahead of publication. It describes the work to protect 
the health of the people of Hampshire and the future focus of health protection 
activities in the year to come. 

Recommendation(s) 
  
That the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board: 

2. Notes and agrees the 2022-2023 Health Protection Annual Report of the 
Director of Public Health. 

3. Supports the future focus of health protection activities for 2023-2024. 
 

Executive Summary  

4. This is the second health protection annual report produced by Hampshire 
County Council’s Public Health team covering the period from April 2022 
through to March 2023, with a forward look on planned activities for the 
following year. 

5. The Health Protection Board (HPB), led by the Director of Public Health, has 
provided a forum for oversight and assurance on health protection matters 
across the Hampshire and Isle of Wight geographies. It has enabled discussion 
on priority areas identified in the previous annual report and continues to be 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Simon.bryant@hants.gov.uk


  

the route by which partners across the health protection system can collectively 
address health protection issues and incidents. 

6. This year’s report reflects a period of transition and renewed direction, as we 
safely exit the COVID-19 pandemic. Work by the Council’s Public Health team 
during 2022 and early 2023 can be broadly summarised across three areas: 

• Living with COVID-19 
• Responding to other emerging health protection issues 
• Renewing focus on vaccination, helping shape the National Vaccination 

Strategy  

7. The above three areas of activity were underpinned by a communications 
strategy designed to address inequalities in the uptake of health protection 
behaviours, with a specific focus on vaccination.  

8. Looking ahead to a future where COVID-19 is no longer considered a Public 
Health Emergency of International Concern (PHEIC1), the Public Health team 
will continue to focus on supporting system recovery and responding to 
emerging health threats. Some of this work will be facilitated through the 
Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF)2 to help address health impacts 
and inequalities which have arisen as a result of the pandemic. 

 
Contextual Information 

9. Hampshire County Council (HCC) has a critical role in protecting the health of 
its population, both in terms of planning to prevent threats from arising, and in 
ensuring appropriate responses when things do go wrong. 

10. The 2012 Health and Social Care Act placed a statutory duty on local 
authorities to improve and protect the health of their residents.  

11. This duty to deliver the health protection function is fulfilled by the Council’s 
Public Health team, who provide ‘information and advice’ to ensure that threats 
to health are understood and seek assurance that these threats are properly 
addressed. 

 

1 Statement on the fifteenth meeting of the IHR (2005) Emergency Committee on the COVID-19 
pandemic (who.int) 
2 Contain Outbreak Management Fund: 2021 to 2022 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
 

Page 28

https://www.who.int/news/item/05-05-2023-statement-on-the-fifteenth-meeting-of-the-international-health-regulations-(2005)-emergency-committee-regarding-the-coronavirus-disease-(covid-19)-pandemic
https://www.who.int/news/item/05-05-2023-statement-on-the-fifteenth-meeting-of-the-international-health-regulations-(2005)-emergency-committee-regarding-the-coronavirus-disease-(covid-19)-pandemic
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/contain-outbreak-management-fund-2021-to-2022#full-publication-update-history


  

12. The Council’s health protection team works with the UK Health Security Agency 
(UKHSA), the NHS, and District and Borough Council Environmental Health 
teams as part of the local health protection system. 

 

Performance - Health protection activities in 2022 – 2023 

13. Living with COVID-19: 
13.1. Embedding the UK Government’s ‘Living with COVID-19’ strategy in day-to-

day functions to manage the virus and support health protection system 
recovery was a key piece of work. The Council’s Public Health team: 

• Supported COVID-19 outbreak management. 
• Provided public health intelligence to inform equitable vaccine delivery. 
• Developed bespoke testing and outbreak management guidance. 
• Advised the Council’s Safety Advisory Group (SAG) on event plans. 
• Delivered communications on the importance of continued safe behaviours. 

14. Responding to other emerging health protection issues 
14.1. Post-pandemic surge in infections  

The post-pandemic surge in infections required a heightened response in terms 
of monitoring levels of infection and meeting competing demands to support 
outbreak management in the context of:  

• An increase in Group A Streptococcus (GAS) infections. 
• Norovirus activity that surpassed the 5-season average.  
• Intensified circulation of influenza and other seasonal respiratory infections. 

 
14.2. Monkeypox/ mpox incident 

In response to the wide-scale outbreak of mpox infection in May 2022, the Public 
Health team worked collaboratively with national teams, the NHS and third 
sector organisations to reduce spread. 

 
14.3. National health protection incidents 

Throughout the year, the Council’s Public Health team maintained situational 
awareness of the likely impact of several national incidents on Hampshire 
residents, such as the detection of poliovirus in London sewage. 

 
14.4. Infections in migrant populations 

The Council’s Public Health team also contributed to the cascading of advice 
and the health protection response to incidents involving migrant populations 
across our local area.  

Page 29



  

 
14.5. Tuberculosis (TB) and Antimicrobial Resistance (AMR) 

Several communication and collaborative activities were undertaken to 
progress work on TB and AMR. This included system working to respond to 
complex TB incidents and exploring the impact of changing clinical pathways 
on antibiotic prescribing. 

15. Renewing focus on vaccination, helping shape the National Vaccination 
Strategy:  

15.1. A key focus of activity during 2022/23 has been on supporting delivery of 
seasonal influenza vaccination and recovery of routine childhood vaccination 
programmes, including MMR vaccination (with the latter being part of the 
national effort to re-instate the UK’s ‘measles-free’ status). 

15.2. The Public Health team have also been involved in the development of the 
new national vaccination strategy, working with partners across the system. 

 

Governance - The Health Protection Board (HPB) 

16. Oversight of health protection matters over the past year has been provided by 
the HPB, which is chaired by the Director of Public Health. The Hampshire HPB 
met for the first time in September 2022, with the main areas of focus being 
communicable diseases and vaccination.  

17. The Board has brought together Council departments and external partners 
key to protecting the health of our local population and has been a forum to 
jointly plan and coordinate activity on health protection issues. Each meeting 
includes time for a deep dive on a specific health protection topic. Over the 
course of 2022-2023, these topics have included: health protection matters 
related to new entrants to the UK (including asylum seekers); TB service 
delivery; Vaccinations in pregnancy and childhood (opportunities and 
challenges); Healthcare Associated Infections (HCAIs); AMR and Health 
Protection issues related to adverse weather. 

18. Board administration has been supported by the Council’s Public Health 
team. 
 

Co-Production 

19. Co-production activities and processes are integral to the delivery of the 
Council’s health protection duty. Some of the areas of work where co-
production principles have been used include: 

Page 30



  

19.1. Gaining insight through public engagement activities that informed the 
communications strategy to address health protection actions in response to 
shifts in government policy on COVID-19.  

19.2. Co-producing the development of communication frameworks with partners 
to show how they interrelate and communicate with each other across the local 
health protection system.  

Future focus 

20. Over the course of the coming year, the Council’s Public Health team will 
continue to retain a strong focus on supporting the health protection system 
recover from the COVID-19 pandemic and respond to emerging threats. 

21. Public Health team activities will be geared up to achieving the health protection 
ambitions set out in the new Hampshire County Council Public Health Strategy 
2023 - 2026. 

22. The team will build on public health actions to address the impact of COVID-19 
on health outcomes and health inequalities. Projects undertaking this work will 
be funded using the COVID Outbreak Management Fund (COMF). 

23. Council health protection priorities for 2023-2024 are set out below: 

• Support the preparedness for, response, and recovery from health 
protection incidents. 

• Contribute to the continued recovery of screening and vaccination 
programmes with a focus on reducing inequalities. 

• Work with the NHS to support national priorities and actions outlined in the 
Tuberculosis (TB): action plan for England, 2021 to 2026, using local 
intelligence to inform how we should act. 

• Contribute to AMR programmes and achievement of the 5-year UK AMR 
Action Plan objectives. 

Conclusions 

24. The 2022-2023 Health Protection Annual Report has presented a wide range 
of activities to protect the health of the people of Hampshire over the past year. 

25. It sets out future priorities for delivery through joint work with partners across 
the health protection system with oversight by the Health Protection Board. 

26. The report will be published once it has been agreed by the Hampshire Health 
and Wellbeing Board. 

Page 31



 
 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 
Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

yes 

 
 

Other Significant Links 
Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives   
Title Date 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 
 The Health and Care Act 2022 

2012 
2022 

  
 
 
 
Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 
None  

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 

1. Equality Duty 
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

Page 32



 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 

sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
This report considers some of the health protection issues that are relevant to 
Hampshire residents. It does not directly impact on people and communities as 
would a specific proposal or project. It identifies the current situation, including 
any activities already in place, which address these health protection issues, 
and explores future work areas which will further impact positively on 
Hampshire's population and future health protection requirements. 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Hampshire County Council 
Health Protection Annual Report

April 2022 – March 2023P
age 35



Outline

• Introduction

• Health protection activities in 2022 – 2023

• Governance

• Future focus

P
age 36



Introduction 

• Second annual report describing the health protection activities of the Council’s Public Health team

• Covers the period from April 2022 – March 2023

• Reports on activity in three areas:

1. Living with COVID-19

2. Responding to other emerging health protection issues

3. Renewing focus on vaccination, helping shape the National Vaccination Strategy

 

• Above activities underpinned by a communications strategy to address inequalities with a specific 
focus on vaccinations

P
age 37



Health protection activities in 2022 / 2023

1. Living with COVID-19 -

• Supported COVID-19 outbreak management working with UKHSA 
and ICB IPC teams

• Provided PH intelligence to support vaccination delivery plans to 
reach Hampshire’s most vulnerable, at-risk populations

• Cascaded guidance for settings around testing and outbreak 
management, adapted during transition in testing policy

• Worked with the Council’s Safety Advisory Group to provide guidance 
to event organisers for safe gathering

• Developed communication campaigns to maintain awareness of safe 
behaviours, informed by insights and engagement

P
age 38



2. Responding to other emerging health protection issues –

• Situational awareness of, and local response to national health protection 

incidents, e.g. detection of Vaccine Derived Polio Virus type 2 (VDPV2) 

in London sewage, rise in Measles, outbreak of listeria monocytogenes linked to 

Baronet semi-soft cheese, outbreak of salmonella linked to certain Kinder 

products, avian influenza.

• Monitored and supported response to rebound in infections - Group A Strep, 

norovirus, influenza, respiratory syncytial virus (RSV) following the removal of 

COVID-19 mitigation measures, and C.difficile (possibly due to overuse and/or 

misuse of antibiotics).

• Coordinated effort with sexual health services on mpox response.

• Supported response to health protection incidents involving the migrant 

population - diphtheria, scabies, tuberculosis (TB).

• Public health messaging and system working around TB and antimicrobial 
resistance (AMR)

• Communications - AMR awareness week, Nov’22; World TB day, Mar’23

• Input to HIOW TB Network and Regional TB Control Board meetings

• Themed discussion at Health Protection Board (HPB) - health protection 

matters related to new entrants to the UK ,TB service delivery; 

Vaccinations in pregnancy and childhood; Healthcare Associated 

Infections (HCAIs); AMR and health protection issues related to adverse 
weather

P
age 39



Intensified influenza activity in winter 2022/23 

Note peak influenza hospitalisation activity, and in the ‘very 

high’ threshold. Activity surpassed previous five years!

Influenza hospitalisations exceeded COVID-19 admission 

rates last winter!

P
age 40



Surge in scarlet fever and norovirus activity in 2022/23 

Higher than expected scarlet fever activity seen during the 

early part of summer 2022. But increased to exceptional 

levels during the early part of  2022/23 season (season being 

from mid-September in one year to the next, or from week 37 

to week 36 in the following year)!

Surge in winter peak norovirus activity in 2022/23  compared 

to 2021/22 reporting period!

P
age 41



3. Renewing focus on vaccination, helping shape the National Vaccination Strategy 

• Supported COVID-19 and seasonal influenza 

vaccination roll out. 

• Promoted adolescent vaccinations in response 

to a decrease in uptake following the impact of 

the pandemic (Human Papilloma Vaccine (HPV), 

Teenage booster (Td/IPV) and Men ACWY, and 

MMR 

• Strategic involvement in the development of a 

new NHS National Vaccination Strategy

• Sector led improvement work around childhood 

immunisations in preparation for the proposed 

delegation of vaccine-related functions from 

NHSE to ICBs in 2024/25

P
age 42



Governance

• Internal governance:

• Internal procedure documents updated with learning from the response to the pandemic and 
other local health protection incidents

• Health Protection Standard Operating Procedure

• Public Health team’s overarching Incident Response Plan

• Communication framework

• Wider governance of health protection matters:

• Oversight of health protection issues and leadership assurance provided by the HPB, chaired 
by DPH – first meeting Sept 2022. Area of focus – communicable diseases

• Board brings together Council departments and key partners to protect the local population

• Hampshire and Isle of Wight Health Protection Boards merged in January 2023

P
age 43



Future Focus 
– for HHWB agreement 

• Continued strong focus on supporting the recovery from the pandemic. Building on 
actions to reduce the COVID-19 driven negative impact on health and health 
inequalities using the Control Outbreak Management Fund.

• Health protection activities aligned to ambitions set out in the new Hampshire County 
Council Public Health Strategy 2023 - 2026.

• Health protection priorities for 2023 -2024

• Support the preparedness for, response, and recovery from health protection 
incidents

• Contribute to the continued recovery of screening and vaccination programmes with 
a focus on reducing inequalities

• Work with the NHS to support priorities and actions outlined in the national TB: 
action plan for England, 2021 to 2026, using local intelligence to inform how we 
should act.

• Contribute to Antimicrobial Resistance (AMR) programmes and achievement of the 
5-year UK AMR Action Plan objectives. 

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA-NC

P
age 44

http://sitn.hms.harvard.edu/flash/2018/vaccines-worlds-deadly-infectious-diseases-unlikely/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-sa/3.0/


Health and Wellbeing Board  
Forward Plan for Future Meetings 

 2023 to 2024 
 

Item Notes MAR 
2023 

JUNE 
2023 

OCT 
2023 

DEC 
2023 

MAR 
2024 

JUN 
2024 

OCT 
2024 

DEC 
2024 

        
Health and Wellbeing Board 
Business Plan Update 
 

Last received 
October 2021 

   
 

     

Board Survey Response and 
Actions 

Last received 
July 2021 

        

Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) Programme 
Update 

 
Last received 
October 2022 

    
 

    

JSNA Work Programme and 
HIA Findings Summary 

Workshops held 
on 29/11/21, 
27/01/22 

        

DPH Annual Report: COVID 19 
Inequalities in Mental Health 
and Wellbeing in Hampshire 

Last received 
March 2022 

 
 

       

DPH Annual Report; 2023/24      X    
Health Protection Annual Report Last received 

October 2022 
   

 
X    X 

Hampshire Place Assembly  
Last received 
December 2022 

        

Terms of Reference Review 
 

Last received 
November 2022 

    
 

    

Climate Change and Health 
 

Last received 
October 2023 

  X    
 

  

Hampshire’s Public Health 
Strategy 2023-2026 

Last received 
October 2023 

  X      

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 9



Item Notes MAR 
2023 

JUNE 
2023 

OCT 
2023 

DEC 
2023 

MAR 
2024 

JUN 
2024 

OCT 
2024 

DEC 
2024 

Hampshire Health and Wellbeing 
Board Strategy 

       X  

        
Joint Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Children and Young 
People's Mental Health and 
Emotional Wellbeing Local 
Transformation Plan 

Last Received 
December 2019 

        

Starting Well Theme Focus Last Received 
March 2022 

       
 

 

Household Support Fund and 
Cost of Living Resources 
 

 
Last received 

December 2022 

    
 

    

Emotional Wellbeing and Mental 
Health Strategy for Children and 
Young People in Hampshire  

         

        
Living Well Theme Focus Last Received 

June 2022 
         

 
        
Hampshire Physical Activity 
Strategy 

Last received 
October 2021 
 

   
 

     

Hampshire Physical Activity 
Strategy Update 

Last received 
October 2023 

  X      

Mental Health and Wellbeing 
Recovery Update 
 

Last Received 
December 2020 

        

Hampshire Healthy Weight 
Strategy 
 

Last received 
December 2021 
 

    
X 

    

P
age 46



Item Notes MAR 
2023 

JUNE 
2023 

OCT 
2023 

DEC 
2023 

MAR 
2024 

JUN 
2024 

OCT 
2024 

DEC 
2024 

Hampshire Mental Wellbeing 
Strategy and Suicide Prevention 
Action Plan 

Last received 
June 2023 

 X   
 

    

Tobacco Control Strategy          
Smokefree Hampshire 2030 – 
Achieving a Smokefree 
Generation for Hampshire by 
2030 

Last received 
March 2023 

 
x 

    
 

X   

Children and Young People’s 
Physical Activity and Healthy 
Weight Management 

Joint PH and 
Energise Me 
item 

      
 
 

  

Trauma Informed Approaches      X    
Alcohol and Substance Misuse 
Partnership 

     X    
BeeWell Survey      X    
        
District Forum Report on 
Housing and Health Topic 

Last Received 
July 2020 

        

Healthier Communities Theme 
Focus 

Last received 
December 2022 

        
Fire and Rescue Service 
Community Safety Strategy 

Draft received 
March 2022 

      
 

  

     
Aging Well Theme Focus Last received 

March 2023 
  

X 
   

 
   

     
Dying Well Theme Focus Last received 

June 2023 
   

X 
   

 
  

Integrated Care Systems     

P
age 47



Item Notes MAR 
2023 

JUNE 
2023 

OCT 
2023 

DEC 
2023 

MAR 
2024 

JUN 
2024 

OCT 
2024 

DEC 
2024 

The HIOW Integrated Care 
System (ICS) - National 
Context, Local Progress to Date 
and Next Steps 

Last received 
March 2021 
 

        

The HIOW Integrated Care 
System - Deep Dive 

Last received 
July 2021 
 

  
 

      

Integrated Care Strategy 
Development 

Last received 
December 2022 

  
 

 
 

     

Final Integrated Care System 
Strategies 

March 2023 x        
HIOW and Frimley ICP Update     X     
Additional Business        
Forward Plan Standing item X X X X X 

 
X 
 

X 
 

X 
 

Integrated Intermediate Care 
(IIC) 

Last received 
March 2021  

 
 

       

Modernising our Hospitals:  
Impact on Population Health in 
Relation to the Strategy  

Last Received 
December 2020 

        

Election of Vice-Chairman 
 

December 2022    
 

      

Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessment  

Last received 
October 2022 

   
 

     

Hampshire Integration and 
Better Care Fund Plan 2021-22 

Update 
October 2022 

        
Annual Report        
Health and Wellbeing Board 
Annual Report  

Summary 
shared for 
circulation June 

  
 

 
X 

   
 

 
X 

 

P
age 48



Item Notes MAR 
2023 

JUNE 
2023 

OCT 
2023 

DEC 
2023 

MAR 
2024 

JUN 
2024 

OCT 
2024 

DEC 
2024 

2022 and 
October 2023 

Written Updates        
Autism Partnership Board 
Report 

Circulated 
September 2020 

    X    

Hampshire Local Dementia 
Profile - Alzheimer's Society 

Circulated 
September 2021 

        

Adults’ Departmental 
Safeguarding Report 

Circulated 
December 2021 

        

Annual Community Safety 
Strategy Group Report 

Circulated 
December 2021 

        

District Forum Housing and 
Health Survey Findings 

To be circulated         

Violence against Women and 
Girls Task Group Briefing 

Circulated March 
2022 

        

HIWFRS Community Safety 
Plan 2022-2025 

Circulated April 
2022. Last 
received June 
2023 

        

Healthwatch Hampshire Annual 
Report 2021-2022 

Circulated 
August 2022 

        

Hampshire Safeguarding Adult 
Board (HSAB) Annual Report 
2021/22 

Circulated 
October 2022 

        

Hampshire Safeguarding 
Children Board Annual Report 
2021/22 

Circulated 1 
November 2022 

        

Winter Fund Briefing (Support 
discharges from the Acute 
Hospitals) 

Circulated 19 
December 2022 

        

Hampshire Place Board 
Progress Report 

Circulated 19 
December 2022 

        

P
age 49



Item Notes MAR 
2023 

JUNE 
2023 

OCT 
2023 

DEC 
2023 

MAR 
2024 

JUN 
2024 

OCT 
2024 

DEC 
2024 

 
               

 

 

P
age 50


	Agenda
	The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for assistance.

	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Integrated Care Partnership update
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Report
	Purpose of this Report
	4.	Receive the report and note the progress made and delivering the strategic priorities.
	5.	Consider its role in helping to deliver the strategic priorities across both integrated care systems.
	Executive Summary
	6.	Hampshire County Council is part of both the Hampshire and Isle of Wight and Frimley Integrated Care Systems, which were established in July 2022 as part of the new Health and Social Care Act 2022. Both systems are composed of two new statutory health and care components, an integrated care board and an integrated care partnership.
	7.	The integrated care partnerships bring together a broad range of partners from across different sectors and are responsible for setting the strategy for health and care to meet local healthcare, social care and public health needs.
	8.	The integrated care strategies describe the priorities across each system. These priorities build on the work of the Local Health and Wellbeing Boards and set priorities where collaboration and joint working would have a positive impact.
	9.	This report outlines the progress made following the report to the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2023.
	Strategic Ambitions
	10.	Each partnership has set some key strategic ambitions which aim to promote the health and wellbeing of the population of Hampshire and the Isle of Wight. Though the priorities are different, to reflect the local needs, there are common threads concerning a focus on prevention, tackling health inequalities, improving health outcomes and service delivery.
	11.	The Frimley Health and Care Integrated Care System has two flagship ambitions, which are: to reduce health inequalities and to increase healthy life expectancy.  In addition, it has six strategic ambitions which are:
	•	Starting well
	•	Living well
	•	People, places and communities
	•	Our people
	•	Leadership and cultures
	•	Outstanding use of resources

	12.	The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care Partnership has set out its aims which are to:
	•	Reduce the demand for health and care services.
	•	Enable us to further improve the quality of service we provide.
	•	Relieve pressure on the people who work in our organisations.
	•	Enable us to live within our financial means.
	13.	Five priority areas emerged from initial assessment of data and understanding insights from people, communities, and colleagues:
	•	Children and Young people
	•	Mental Wellbeing
	•	Good health and proactive care
	•	Our People (Workforce)
	•	Digital solutions, data, and insight
	Achievements and Next Steps

	14.	Both integrated care partnerships have worked with a range of stakeholders to develop their priorities and to benefit from collaboration and joint working. The strategies also draw upon the Hampshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) to identify the population’s health and wellbeing needs and health inequalities.
	15.	The Frimley Integrated Care System has established an assembly, consisting of a range of partner organisations from statutory and the voluntary, community and social enterprise sectors. A refreshed strategy has been published and a local forward plan will be published setting out how the ambitions of the strategy will be achieved. In addition, there has been an emphasis on developing system leadership and the culture of the partnership. As next steps, the Frimley Integrated Care Partnership will be developing the design and function of the Partnership. In addition, there will be a focus on ensuring the progress and impact of the strategy is measured and reported.  There will also work to continue to strengthen and embed partnership working.
	16.	The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care System has established a system of assemblies, involving a wide range of stakeholders, the last of which was held in September around the theme of mental wellbeing, and a joint committee of key stakeholders. Programme boards and leads have been identified for the strategic priorities and work has mobilised. The Hampshire and Isle of Wight VCSE Health and Care Alliance (HIVCA) is also being developed to strengthen the voice of the voluntary sector.  As next steps, the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care Partnership will be focussing on the delivery of the programmes and having effective, agreed outcomes measures. There will also be a focus on the opportunities for shared communications. An assembly with the theme of social connectedness will be held in February 2024.
	17.	The Integrated Care Partnerships will have regard for and build on the work of the health and wellbeing boards to maximise the value of place based collaboration and integration and reduce the risk of duplication. They will ensure that action at system-wide level adds value to the action at place and they are all aligned in understanding what is best for the population.
	Conclusion
	18.	The Frimley and Hampshire and Isle of Wight Integrated Care Systems are working with a broad range of stakeholders to develop strategic priorities where there are benefits in greater partnership working and use of the collective resources to improve the health of the population.
	19.	The strategies that have been developed with the aim of supporting people to live healthy lives, tackling health inequalities, with an emphasis on preventative interventions, and to reduce the need for health and care services in the long term.
	20.	The strategies acknowledge the work happening at a Hampshire place level and importance of partnership working with the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board.  It is recognised that health and wellbeing boards lead action at place level to improve people’s lives and remain responsible for promoting greater integration and partnership between the NHS, public health, and local government. Both Integrated Care Systems seek to work alongside the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board to maximise opportunities for joint working to improve the health outcomes of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight population.


	REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	Other Significant Links
	EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:
	1.	Equality Duty
	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
	-	Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);
	-	Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
	-	Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.
	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
	-	The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
	-	Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
	-	Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.

	2.	Equalities Impact Assessment:
	At this stage, an equalities impact assessment is not relevant because the item for discussion is an update for discussion and noting.


	HWBB Update on ICS Strategies 070123

	7 Healthy Weight
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Report
	Purpose of this Report
	1.	This report seeks to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the Healthy Weight Strategy for Hampshire, providing examples of the successes achieved by system partners in contributing to the strategy and makes recommendations on how to progress with the ambition to mitigate against the prevalence of obesity in Hampshire and support Hampshire residents who are overweight or obese.
	Recommendation(s)
	That the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board:
	2.	Recognise the ongoing impacts on the health of Hampshire residents of being overweight or obese.
	3.	To note progress made by system partners in delivering core objectives of the Healthy Weight Strategy.
	4.	Seek opportunities to collaborate on measures to mitigate excess weight gain among Hampshire residents and support those residents who are living with obesity.
	5.	Recognise the opportunities for Districts and Borough Councils to apply good practice identified in taking a whole systems approach building and linking healthy weight objectives into various policies.
	Executive Summary
	6.	The prevalence of overweight & obesity in Hampshire is slightly higher than the regional prevalence and the same as the national prevalence. This highlights the need for ongoing action among partners to tackle this important public health problem.
	7.	Partners from Local Authorities, Integrated Care Boards, to Childrens Partnerships and Public Health continue to work with ambition to mitigate weight gain and help those living with obesity to manage their weight. The Hampshire healthy weight strategy exists to support this ambition.
	8.	This report makes recommendations on how to proceed with the Healthy Weight Strategy with the ultimate objective of reducing the prevalence of overweight and obesity in Hampshire and reducing it’s impact on population health.
	Hampshire Healthy Weight Strategy
	13.	The Hampshire Healthy Weight Strategy 2022-2026 supports the overarching Public Health Strategy for Hampshire in its ambition to increase the number of years Hampshire residents can expect to live in good health and reduce the gap in healthy life years between the most and least healthy.
	14.	Through effective partnership working to deliver cross-cutting actions and using a whole systems approach, the Hampshire Healthy Weight Strategy 2022-2026 aims to reduce or level off the prevalence of overweight and obesity.
	15.	While the Hampshire Healthy Weight Strategy 2022-2026 remains a key document of reference focussing on overweight and obesity in Hampshire, there are obvious synergies with allied strategy and policy documents.  including the Hampshire Physical Activity Strategy, the draft Local Transport Plan (LTP4), and the District and Borough Local Plans.
	16.	Through our three overarching strategic objectives we will work towards a healthier Hampshire:
	a.	We will support places and communities to enable residents to achieve a healthier weight.
	b.	We will work with health, care, education and community settings and systems to promote healthier weight across the life course.
	c.	We will reduce inequalities in health by focusing on people and populations most at risk.

	Action on objective 1: We will support places and communities to enable residents to achieve a healthier weight
	17.	Partners are working together to ensure that health and wellbeing is  enhanced with action on active travel, opportunities for physical activity, access to green and blue space, food environment and encouraging quality food businesses.
	18.	District and Borough Councils have built health into Local Plans so that future developments can provide opportunities to develop healthy weight urban environments.
	19.	The draft Local Transport Plan (LTP4) put health and wellbeing at the heart of transport policy, including promoting quality places for people to live and putting measures in place to enable active travel choices.
	20.	Partners continue to work together to deliver whole systems approaches (WSA) to obesity in Havant and Rushmoor.  Work is underway to identify and deliver renewed actions for and with partners.
	21.	To make progress on healthier food environments, in 2024 a Hampshire-wide healthier food award will be launched for food premises such as caterers, restaurants and take-aways, to apply for (at no cost to the food business).
	22.	Partners continue to work together to support those Hampshire residents experiencing food insecurity, working with food banks, food pantries, library services and others to improve access, availability, affordability, and quality of healthier food options.
	Action on objective 2: We will work with health, care, education and community settings and systems to promote healthier weight across the life course.
		Hampshire County Council (Public Health, Childrens Services and participating schools) actively promote a whole setting approach to healthy weight in educational settings.
		This includes the provision of lessons in living healthily, provision of a nutritious and varied menu at mealtimes with free school meals for some eligible children, environments in school settings that promote physical activity and opportunities for families to build active travel into their daily routine to/from school.
	23.	This allows all children to experience and develop positive beliefs and behaviours about eating and exercise that last into adulthood. Support includes training for all staff, resources, and policy guidance.
	24.	The Holiday Activity and Food (HAF) programme provides funded holiday activities for children who are in receipt of free school meals. HAF schemes provide healthy meals, and many of these community-based providers carry out the Daily Mile at their provisions, others are specialist sports providers offering a range of sporting activities.
	25.	Programmes such as the Golden Mile and the Hampshire School Games delivered by Energise Me in partnership with other organisations are key, alongside the great work of our teachers leading PE lessons. Funding has also been achieved to boost physical activity in our communities particularly for those populations who are most inactive.
	26.	The first 1001 days is recognised as crucial in the best start for children. Hampshire County Council has with stakeholders and the community to review the support for the first 1001 days of a child’s life.
	27.	Partners are working together to design and test a family lifestyle support programme that sensitively supports factors affecting family members weight.  This is to be driven by insights from the very communities partners are trying to support.
	28.	Childrens Services have successfully increased e-learning uptake among staff on healthier eating in educational settings.

	Action on objective 3: We will reduce inequalities in health by focusing on people and populations most at risk.
	29.	The newly commissioned Tier 2 adult weight management service is focussed on addressing inequalities with prorities including men, residents living in deciles of greater deprivation and those living with comorbidities. Face to face, digital and physical activity formats ensure greater accessibility to the service. Demand for the service has been high.
	30.	Man V Fat is a physical activity and weight management intervention tailored to the needs of men. Informal football and weight loss achievements equate to points in a league, motivating men to lose weight. There are currently leagues in Aldershot, Andover, Basingstoke, Eastleigh, Gosport, and Havant, reflecting target area where the prevalence of obesity is higher.
	31.	Public Health, commercial partners and the community are working together to pilot support for women too: working with Horizon Leisure to deliver a women-only programme in Havant and with My Health Revolution to deliver a women-only programme in Gosport and Rushmoor.
	32.	General practices and community pharmacies can also refer eligible Hampshire residents to the NHS digital weight management programme. This programme supports Hampshire adults living with obesity who also have a diagnosis of diabetes, hypertension or both, to manage their weight and improve their health. It is a 12-week online behavioural and lifestyle programme that people can access via a smartphone or computer. The ICB are reviewing the current uptake of this service to increase referrals into the programme.
	33.	NHS commissioned Tier 3 and Tier 4 (bariatric) weight management interventions continue to support residents with higher needs.  The impact of recent NICE guidelines on Semaglutide for weight loss on services is not clear at the time of writing.
	34.	We recognise inequalities in access to weight management support for Hampshire residents living with a Learning Disability (LD). Partners are working together to build on the good practice of other Local Authority weight management programmes to support this specific community.
	35.	We recognise that mental health may present a barrier to uptake or affect the impact of a standard weight management support offer. Partners are working together to identify accessible support with appropriate outcome expectations.
	Conclusion

	36.	Much work has been undertaken by system partners in seeking to mitigate the opportunities for weight gain and to help those living with obesity in Hampshire. It remains that the work needs to continue, building on the learning derived from the many partners that contribute to mitigating obesity impact in Hampshire.

	REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:
	1.	Equality Duty
	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
	-	Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);
	-	Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
	-	Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.
	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
	-	The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
	-	Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
	-	Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.

	2.	Equalities Impact Assessment


	8 Health Protection Report 2023
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Report
	Purpose of this Report
	1.	The purpose of this report is to present the Director of Public Health’s Health Protection Annual Report, ahead of publication. It describes the work to protect the health of the people of Hampshire and the future focus of health protection activities in the year to come.
	Recommendation(s)
	2.	Notes and agrees the 2022-2023 Health Protection Annual Report of the Director of Public Health.
	3.	Supports the future focus of health protection activities for 2023-2024.
	Executive Summary
	4.	This is the second health protection annual report produced by Hampshire County Council’s Public Health team covering the period from April 2022 through to March 2023, with a forward look on planned activities for the following year.
	5.	The Health Protection Board (HPB), led by the Director of Public Health, has provided a forum for oversight and assurance on health protection matters across the Hampshire and Isle of Wight geographies. It has enabled discussion on priority areas identified in the previous annual report and continues to be the route by which partners across the health protection system can collectively address health protection issues and incidents.
	6.	This year’s report reflects a period of transition and renewed direction, as we safely exit the COVID-19 pandemic. Work by the Council’s Public Health team during 2022 and early 2023 can be broadly summarised across three areas:
		Living with COVID-19
		Responding to other emerging health protection issues
		Renewing focus on vaccination, helping shape the National Vaccination Strategy
	7.	The above three areas of activity were underpinned by a communications strategy designed to address inequalities in the uptake of health protection behaviours, with a specific focus on vaccination.
	8.	Looking ahead to a future where COVID-19 is no longer considered a Public Health Emergency of International Concern (PHEIC� Statement on the fifteenth meeting of the IHR (2005) Emergency Committee on the COVID-19 pandemic (who.int)), the Public Health team will continue to focus on supporting system recovery and responding to emerging health threats. Some of this work will be facilitated through the Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF)� Contain Outbreak Management Fund: 2021 to 2022 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) to help address health impacts and inequalities which have arisen as a result of the pandemic.
	Contextual Information

	9.	Hampshire County Council (HCC) has a critical role in protecting the health of its population, both in terms of planning to prevent threats from arising, and in ensuring appropriate responses when things do go wrong.
	10.	The 2012 Health and Social Care Act placed a statutory duty on local authorities to improve and protect the health of their residents.
	11.	This duty to deliver the health protection function is fulfilled by the Council’s Public Health team, who provide ‘information and advice’ to ensure that threats to health are understood and seek assurance that these threats are properly addressed.
	12.	The Council’s health protection team works with the UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA), the NHS, and District and Borough Council Environmental Health teams as part of the local health protection system.
	Performance - Health protection activities in 2022 – 2023
	13.	Living with COVID-19:
	13.1.	Embedding the UK Government’s ‘Living with COVID-19’ strategy in day-to-day functions to manage the virus and support health protection system recovery was a key piece of work. The Council’s Public Health team:
		Supported COVID-19 outbreak management.
		Provided public health intelligence to inform equitable vaccine delivery.
		Developed bespoke testing and outbreak management guidance.
		Advised the Council’s Safety Advisory Group (SAG) on event plans.
		Delivered communications on the importance of continued safe behaviours.

	14.	Responding to other emerging health protection issues
	14.1.	Post-pandemic surge in infections
	14.2.	Monkeypox/ mpox incident
	14.3.	National health protection incidents
	14.4.	Infections in migrant populations
	14.5.	Tuberculosis (TB) and Antimicrobial Resistance (AMR)

	15.	Renewing focus on vaccination, helping shape the National Vaccination Strategy:
	15.1.	A key focus of activity during 2022/23 has been on supporting delivery of seasonal influenza vaccination and recovery of routine childhood vaccination programmes, including MMR vaccination (with the latter being part of the national effort to re-instate the UK’s ‘measles-free’ status).
	15.2.	The Public Health team have also been involved in the development of the new national vaccination strategy, working with partners across the system.

	Governance - The Health Protection Board (HPB)
	16.	Oversight of health protection matters over the past year has been provided by the HPB, which is chaired by the Director of Public Health. The Hampshire HPB met for the first time in September 2022, with the main areas of focus being communicable diseases and vaccination.
	17.	The Board has brought together Council departments and external partners key to protecting the health of our local population and has been a forum to jointly plan and coordinate activity on health protection issues. Each meeting includes time for a deep dive on a specific health protection topic. Over the course of 2022-2023, these topics have included: health protection matters related to new entrants to the UK (including asylum seekers); TB service delivery; Vaccinations in pregnancy and childhood (opportunities and challenges); Healthcare Associated Infections (HCAIs); AMR and Health Protection issues related to adverse weather.
	18.	Board administration has been supported by the Council’s Public Health team.
	Co-Production
	19.	Co-production activities and processes are integral to the delivery of the Council’s health protection duty. Some of the areas of work where co-production principles have been used include:
	19.1.	Gaining insight through public engagement activities that informed the communications strategy to address health protection actions in response to shifts in government policy on COVID-19.
	19.2.	Co-producing the development of communication frameworks with partners to show how they interrelate and communicate with each other across the local health protection system.

	Future focus
	20.	Over the course of the coming year, the Council’s Public Health team will continue to retain a strong focus on supporting the health protection system recover from the COVID-19 pandemic and respond to emerging threats.
	21.	Public Health team activities will be geared up to achieving the health protection ambitions set out in the new Hampshire County Council Public Health Strategy 2023 - 2026.
	22.	The team will build on public health actions to address the impact of COVID-19 on health outcomes and health inequalities. Projects undertaking this work will be funded using the COVID Outbreak Management Fund (COMF).
	23.	Council health protection priorities for 2023-2024 are set out below:
		Support the preparedness for, response, and recovery from health protection incidents.
		Contribute to the continued recovery of screening and vaccination programmes with a focus on reducing inequalities.
		Work with the NHS to support national priorities and actions outlined in the Tuberculosis (TB): action plan for England, 2021 to 2026, using local intelligence to inform how we should act.
		Contribute to AMR programmes and achievement of the 5-year UK AMR Action Plan objectives.

	Conclusions
	24.	The 2022-2023 Health Protection Annual Report has presented a wide range of activities to protect the health of the people of Hampshire over the past year.
	25.	It sets out future priorities for delivery through joint work with partners across the health protection system with oversight by the Health Protection Board.
	26.	The report will be published once it has been agreed by the Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Board.

	REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	Other Significant Links
	EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:
	1.	Equality Duty
	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
	-	Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);
	-	Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
	-	Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.
	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
	-	The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
	-	Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
	-	Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.

	2.	Equalities Impact Assessment:
	This report considers some of the health protection issues that are relevant to Hampshire residents. It does not directly impact on people and communities as would a specific proposal or project. It identifies the current situation, including any activities already in place, which address these health protection issues, and explores future work areas which will further impact positively on Hampshire's population and future health protection requirements.


	Health Protection Annual Report 2022-23-HWB December 2023
	Slide 1: Hampshire County Council  Health Protection Annual Report April 2022 – March 2023
	Slide 2: Outline
	Slide 3: Introduction 
	Slide 4: Health protection activities in 2022 / 2023
	Slide 5
	Slide 6: Intensified influenza activity in winter 2022/23 
	Slide 7: Surge in scarlet fever and norovirus activity in 2022/23 
	Slide 8
	Slide 9: Governance
	Slide 10: Future Focus  – for HHWB agreement 


	9 Forward Plan

